
Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

Subject: Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  2.0. Approval of Agenda 

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the Council of Superintendents approve the  

January 19, 2023 agenda as presented. 

 

Introduction: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



  

 

 

Solano County 
Special Education Local Plan Area 

COUNCIL OF SUPERINTENDENTS (COS) 
Thursday, January 19, 2023 

10:00 – 11:30 a.m. 
Solano County Office of Education – Boardroom 

5100 Business Center Drive 
Fairfield, CA 94534 

 
1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance Action 

2. Approval of Agenda Action 

3. Consent Calendar Items 
3.1.  Approval of Minutes – November 17, 2022 and December 14, 2022 
3.2.  Approval of Nonpublic School Placements 
3.3.  Consolidated Budget and Finance Reports 

Action 

4. Public Comment 
Members of the public wishing to address any item listed on the agenda are asked to submit a Request to Speak 
form to the Assistant Superintendent of the SELPA at the opening of the meeting. Speakers are requested to limit 
their comments to three (3) minutes. Public comment will be limited to a combined total of 15 minutes. 

5. SELPA Activity Reports 
5.1.  Assistant Superintendent’s Report 
5.2.  Dispute Resolution Report 
5.3.  Nonpublic School Monitoring  

 
Information 
Information 
Information 

6. SELPA Business 
6.1.   2022-2023 Fee-for-Service Schedule 
6.2.   2023-2024 Budget Development Calendar   
6.3.   Vacaville USD Extensive Support Needs Transfer Consideration 
6.4.   Solano COE Transportation Transfer Consideration 
6.5.   Regional Transportation  
6.6.   Direction on Solano SELPA Funding of Regional Programs 
6.7.   Updated SELPA Salary Schedules 

 
Action 
Action 

Information 
Information 

Action 
Action 

Information 

7. Advance Planning Information 

8. Closed Session 
8.1.  Public Comment on Closed Session Agenda Item 

Any member of the public may address the Board regarding items on the closed session 
agenda. Each speaker is allowed three (3) minutes. 

8.2.  Adjourn to Closed Session 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957 (b)(1), the COS will adjourn to closed 
session for a mid-year check-in, as part of the SELPA Assistant Superintendent’s   
evaluation of performance. 

8.3.  Closed Session 
Evaluation of Performance (Government Code section 54957 (b)(1)). Mid-year check-in - 
Assistant Superintendent, SELPA 

8.4. Reconvene in Open Session 
 

Action 

9. Report of Closed Session Actions 
 

 

10. Adjournment  

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access SELPA public 
meetings, to access written documents being discussed at the meetings, or to otherwise participate at SELPA 
public meetings, please contact the SELPA office at (707) 399-4460. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the SELPA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting and to 
provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services. 
Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to the Council of Superintendents regarding 
an item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Solano County SELPA office located at 
5100 Business Center Dr., Fairfield, CA, during normal business hours. In addition, such writings and documents 
may be posted on the SELPA’s website at www.SolanoCountySELPA.net. 

Participants: 
Benicia Unified School District 

Dixon Unified School District 
Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District 

Travis Unified School District 
Vacaville Unified School District 

Solano County Office of Education 

http://www.solanocountyselpa.net/


Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 

 
 

Subject: Consent Calendar Items 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  3.0. Consent Calendar Items 

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the Council of Superintendents approve all consent 

calendar items as presented.  

 

Introduction: 
 

3.1.1. November 17, 2022 meeting minutes  
 
3.1.2. December 14, 2022 meeting minutes 
 
3.2. Nonpublic school placement of five (5) students, as 

determined by expanded IEP teams 
 
3.3. Consolidated budget and finance reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
See attached 
 
See attached 
 
See attached  
 
 
See attached 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



Page 1 of 2 

COUNCIL OF SUPERINTENDENTS (COS) 
NOVEMBER 17, 2022 
MEETING MINUTES 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Superintendent Pam Conklin called the meeting to
order at 10:00 a.m.

Members Present: 
Solano County SELPA: Andrew Ownby 
Benicia USD: Damon Wright 
Dixon USD: Brian Dolan 
Fairfield-Suisun USD: Kris Corey 
Solano COE: Lisette Estrella-Henderson 
Travis USD: Pam Conklin 
Vacaville USD: Jane Shamieh 

2. Approval of Agenda

Move to approve the agenda. 
Motion by Superintendent Brian Dolan, second by Superintendent Jane Shamieh 
Final Resolution: Motion Carries 
Yes: Superintendents Pam Conklin, Kris Corey, Brian Dolan, Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Jane 
Shamieh, Damon Wright  

3. Consent Calendar Items

Move to approve consent calendar items as presented. 
Motion by Superintendent Lisette Estrella-Henderson, second by Superintendent Damon Wright 
Final Resolution: Motion Carries 
Yes: Superintendents Pam Conklin, Kris Corey, Brian Dolan, Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Jane 
Shamieh, Damon Wright 

4. Public Comment – No public comment provided.

5. SELPA Activity Reports
5.1. Assistant Superintendent’s Report – Andrew Ownby presented an update on the Solano
County SELPA’s latest developments. He highlighted current litigation related to special
education, CDE compliance monitoring, and support the SELPA provides its member districts,
including professional development opportunities.

5.2. Dispute Resolution Report – Information item. Andrew Ownby reported that the SELPA 
received interest from a well-regarded member district employee to fill the vacant Independent 
Child Advocate position who would potentially start in January 2023.  No questions or concerns 
were reported. 

5.3. Nonpublic School Monitoring – Information item. No questions or concerns were reported. 

6. SELPA Business
6.1. Regional Transportation – Andrew Ownby reported that the SELPA Governance and
Finance Committee met with Chad Barksdale, Executive Director, and Diane Hughes, Business
Manager from the West County Transportation Agency, a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) located in

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.1



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Sonoma County, to share details on their agency. Andrew noted that while a JPA model was more 
advantageous than a transportation consortium, the Solano County SELPA’s unique 
transportation needs differed and may not benefit from adopting Sonoma’s JPA model as cost-
savings derive from route consolidation. Andrew encouraged the COS to discuss their desires on 
the next steps. Benicia, Dixon, and Vacaville USDs indicated they had no interest in forming a 
JPA, while Fairfield and Travis USDs indicated they were open to considering alternatives. 
Regional transportation will be an item for discussion and action at the January 19, 2023, meeting 
to determine the direction of the next steps. 
 
6.2. Solano County SELPA Procedural Manual  
6.2.1. Section A – Individualized Education Program 
6.2.2. Section D – Child Find 
6.2.3. Section K – Students with Disabilities Enrolled in Private School 

Move to approve the Solano County SELPA Procedural Manual revisions to sections A – 
Individualized Education Program, D – Child Find, and K – Students with Disabilities Enrolled in 
Private School.  
Motion by Superintendent Jane Shamieh, second by Superintendent Kris Corey 
Final Resolution: Motion Carries 
Yes: Superintendents Pam Conklin, Kris Corey, Brian Dolan, Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Jane 
Shamieh, Damon Wright 

 
6.3 Direction on December 22, 2022 meeting – At the October 27, 2022, COS meeting, there 
was a discussion about the need to cancel the December 22, 2022, meeting and instead schedule 
a joint COS and Governance and Finance Committee study session on December 14, 2022.  

Move to cancel the December 22, 2022, COS meeting and schedule a joint study session with 
the Governance and Finance Committee for December 14, 2022.  
Motion by Superintendent Kris Corey, second by Damon Wright 
Yes: Superintendents Pam Conklin, Kris Corey, Brian Dolan, Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Jane 
Shamieh, Damon Wright 

 
7. Advance Planning – January 19, 2023 meeting: Closed Session: Assistant Superintendent’s 
mid-year check-in, 2022-23 Fee-for-Service Schedule, 2023-24 Budget Development Calendar, 
final decision to be made on program transfers, and direction on regional transportation.  
 
8. Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 11.43 a.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by Monica Hurtado and reviewed by Andrew Ownby. 

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.1



COUNCIL OF SUPERINTENDENTS (COS) & GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 
DECEMBER 14, 2022 
MEETING MINUTES 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Superintendent Pam Conklin called the meeting to
order at 9:00 a.m.

Members Present: 
Solano County SELPA: Andrew Ownby 
Benicia USD: Damon Wright, Steve Phillips, Tim Rahill 
Dixon USD: Brian Dolan, Trudy Barrington 
Fairfield-Suisun USD: Kris Corey, Stavros Gougoumis, Laneia Grindle 
Solano COE: Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Siobhan Dill, Michelle Henson 
Travis USD: Pam Conklin, Gabriel Moulaison  
Vacaville USD: Jane Shamieh, Kelly Burks, Aumrey Moland 

2. Approval of Agenda

Move to approve the agenda. 
Motion by Superintendent Lisette Estrella-Henderson, second by Superintendent Brian Dolan 
Final Resolution: Motion Carries 
Yes: Superintendents Pam Conklin, Kris Corey, Brian Dolan, Lisette Estrella-Henderson, Jane 
Shamieh, Damon Wright  

3. Public Comment – No public comment provided.

4. Program Transfer Update
4.1. Vacaville USD Extensive Support Needs Transfer Consideration – Kelly Burks, VUSD
Assistant Superintendent, Business & Administrative Services, presented the group with
documents (see attached) featuring SELPA revenue history and the proposed budget for the nine
Extensive Support Needs classes that could be operated by VUSD. Kelly reported on the
challenges to obtaining information to decide on the program transfer and emphasized concern
about making a decision that would best support students and mitigate the financial impact on
member districts. After extensive discussion on the desire for VUSD to serve their own students,
a decision was not made and will be addressed for final action at the January 19, 2023, COS
meeting. Additionally, several members requested that a third party be contracted to conduct a
study of the Solano SELPA funding of regional programs. Members were encouraged to bring
forward suggestions for consultants at the next meeting.

4.2. Solano COE Transportation Transfer Consideration – Lisette Estrella-Henderson, 
Superintendent of Schools, reported that SCOE is close to finalizing the seven-point plan to 
complete the potential transfer. All the details will be finalized by the January 19, 2023, COS 
meeting.  

5. Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 10:14 a.m.

Minutes submitted by Monica Hurtado and reviewed by Andrew Ownby. 

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 1 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 2 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 3 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 4 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 5 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 6 of 7



COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.1.2

Page 7 of 7



  COS 1/19/23 
Item #3.2 

COUNCIL OF SUPERINTENDENTS 
JANUARY 19, 2023 

NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL PLACEMENTS 

BACKGROUND: 

ACTION: 

BACKGROUND: 

ACTION: 

BACKGROUND: 

ACTION: 

BACKGROUND: 

ACTION: 

Student: 14-year-old Student 
District of Residence:  BUSD 
Reason for NPS Placement: The student’s challenges with attention impulse 
control and reading comprehension deficits impact his ability to access the general 
education curriculum without support. In addition, student’s social/emotional 
needs require a higher staff-to-student ratio in a therapeutic setting 
Current Placement – CDS 
NPS of Placement: Sierra Solano 
Cost to SELPA: $36,708.00 
It is recommended that the COS approve the placement as determined by the 
expanded IEP team. 

Student: 9-year-old Student 
District of Residence:  FSUSD 
Reason for NPS Placement: The student’s externalizing behaviors make it difficult 
for them to learn, and they are often out of the classroom during core instruction 
for reading and math. Also, due to those externalizing behaviors that are directed 
at others, they are unable to maintain friendships with peers. They exhibit 
inappropriate behaviors that are considered to be atypical. They often seem to be 
in a mood of unhappiness as they are easily and often frustrated by academic tasks 
and adult requests/demands.  
Current Placement – Cleo Gordon 
NPS of Placement: Sierra Solano 
Cost to SELPA: $35,052.00 
It is recommended that the COS approve the placement as determined by the 
expanded IEP team. 

Student: 20-year-old Student 
District of Residence:  FSUSD 
Reason for NPS Placement: The student’s deficits in verbal and non-verbal 
communication, social interaction, global delays, and behavior challenges make it 
difficult for the student to access the general education curriculum.  
Current Placement – H. Glenn Richardson 
NPS of Placement: Spectrum Delta 
Cost to SELPA: $41,770.40 
It is recommended that the COS approve the placement as determined by the 
expanded IEP team. 

Student: 11-year-old Student 
District of Residence:  FSUSD 
Reason for NPS Placement: Student presents with severe cognitive ability delays 
paired with related processing, adaptive, language, motor, and achievement skill 
deficits related to Autism. The student's adaptive and behavioral profiles severely 
adversely affect their educational access and performance in the general ed 
curriculum. 
Current Placement – H. Glenn Richardson 
NPS of Placement: Point Quest-Sacramento 
Cost to SELPA: $63,838.00 
It is recommended that the COS approve the placement as determined by the 
expanded IEP team. 



         COS 1/19/23 
   Item #3.2 
BACKGROUND: Student: 13-year-old Student 
   District of Residence:  TUSD    

Reason for NPS Placement: The student’s inappropriate types of behavior or 
feelings, a mood of unhappiness or depression, and physical symptoms or fears 
adversely affect their educational performance. In addition, they present with 
difficulty sustaining attention and hyperactivity/impulsivity. 
Current Placement – Golden West Middle School 

 NPS of Placement: Sierra- Solano 
 Cost to SELPA: $53,072.00 
ACTION: It is recommended that the COS approve the placement as determined by the 

expanded IEP team. 
 
 



SELPA Financial Statement 

January 2023 

FISCAL 16A REVENUE BY RESOURCE SUMMARY  ................................................................................................ 1 

FISCAL 02A REVENUE BY RESOURCE DETAIL  ...................................................................................................... 2 

FISCAL 16A EXPENSE BY RESOURCE SUMMARY  ................................................................................................. 5 

FISCAL 02A EXPENSE BY RESOURCE DETAIL  ....................................................................................................... 6 

FISCAL 16A REVENUE BY OBJECT SUMMARY ..................................................................................................... 13 

FISCAL 02A REVENUE BY OBJECT DETAIL ........................................................................................................... 14 

FISCAL 16A EXPENSE BY OBJECT SUMMARY  ...................................................................................................... 16 

FISCAL 02A EXPENSE BY OBJECT DETAIL  ............................................................................................................ 17 

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 1 of 22



1

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 2 of 22



2

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 3 of 22



3

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 4 of 22



4

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 5 of 22



5

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 6 of 22



6

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 7 of 22



7

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 8 of 22



8

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 9 of 22



9

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 10 of 22



10

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 11 of 22



11

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 12 of 22



12

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 13 of 22



13

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 14 of 22



14

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 15 of 22



15

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 16 of 22



16

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 17 of 22



17

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 18 of 22



18

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 19 of 22



19

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 20 of 22



20

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 21 of 22



21

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #3.3

Page 22 of 22



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Activity Reports 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  5.1. Assistant Superintendent’s Report 

 

Type: Information 

 

Introduction: 
 

• The Assistant Superintendent will provide a brief update 
on the Solano County SELPA’s activities.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 

 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

Subject: SELPA Activity Reports 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  5.2. Dispute Resolution Report 

 

Type: Information 

 

Pursuant to Ed Code, state level compliance complaints and due process 
complaints are reported to the COS regularly. Current dispute resolution 
activity is as follows: 
 

California Department of Education (CDE) 
Compliance Complaints: 
•  2 new – Travis USD (1); Vacaville USD (1)  
•  1 ongoing – Vacaville USD 
•  0 closed  

 

Due Process Updates: 

•  2 new – Travis USD (1); Vacaville USD (1)  

•  1 ongoing – Travis USD 

•  2 closed – Fairfield-Suisun USD 
  

Office for Civil Rights (OCR) Complaints: 
• 0 new  
• 1 ongoing – Vacaville USD 
• 0 closed  

 

 
 

Notes: 

 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

Subject: SELPA Activity Reports 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  5.3. Nonpublic School Monitoring 

 

Type: Information 

 

Introduction: 
 

• Andrew Ownby will present an update on the monitoring 
of the nonpublic schools utilized by the Solano County 
SELPA.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
See attached monitoring 
log. 

 



2022-23 NPS Log (for SEC and COS) Report out Jan 23 (visit Nov/Dec)

1/11/2023 16:08:26

NPS Name Date of Visit Drop In? Solano 
SELPA 
Students 
Enrolled day 
of visit

Solano 
SELPA 
Students 
Absent day 
of visit

Related 
Services 
Positions 
Fully 
Staffed?

Related 
Services 
Logs 
Received?

Comments:

ABC Richmond 11/14/22 Yes 1 0 Yes Yes Observed student in the classroom setting. He is making 
progress with using his communication device appropriately. 
Currently ABC is not taking any new students. 

ANOVA Concord No visit this month.  SELPA will monitor on a bi-monthly basis 
due to low enrollment.

CCHAT Rancho Cordova 12/5/22 Yes 3 3 Yes Emailed Only one student was present the day of my visit. I was able to 
observe the student in music and his speech session. Student 
has started making some progress after being out ill for a while. 

Cypress Petaluma No visit this month.  SELPA will monitor on a bi-monthly basis 
due to low enrollment.

Capitol Elementary No visit this month.  SELPA will monitor on a bi-monthly basis 
due to low enrollment.

Capitol Academy 11/16/22 Yes 2 0 Yes Yes Was able to observe both students in their classroom. Was able 
to observe one of the students access the break (a walk outside). 
One student shared his points sheet with me and what reward he 
was working towards. 

Land Park Academy 
Sacramento

11/16/22 Yes 2 0 Yes Yes Observed both students. They are both showing improvement. 
Land Park has hired a new SLP. I was able to observe the staff 
effectively support one of our students through a transition that 
used to be difficult for him and help redirect him as needed and 
have him use his PECS for choice making and asking for a break, 
which is good progress for this student. 

Point Quest Sacramento 12/5/22 Yes 6 2 Yes Yes They have hired a new behaviorist. I was able to observe all our 
students present. They were all doing well. It was spirit week and 
the kids were enjoying wearing their pajamas that day. The site is 
splitting one of their larger classes and will have room for lower 
elementary mod/severe kids starting in January. 

Sierra Sacramento 12/5/22 Yes 8 2 Yes waiting for 
updated

I was able to speak with all our students present. The site has 
revamped their point system to be more positive. The admin 
report that they are seeing better success and buy-in form 
students. They are now offering a variety of reward activities that 
align with a comprehensive campus (dances, field trips, student 
store, etc). The company they contract with for Speech services 
has given notice they will no be able to provide services after 
December. Sierra is actively looking for an SLP they can employ 
directly. 

Sierra Solano 12/8/22 Yes 38 NA No Yes Observed 2 classrooms and walked through the entire campus. 
Student Cafe up and running. It serves as a reward as well as a 
work experience for food service. The Cafe is located in a space 
that served as a restaurant previously and is fully equipped with 
food service equipment.

Spectrum Concord 12/7/22 Yes 2 0 Yes Yes I was able to talk to staff and observe both students participating 
in their given classrooms. Staff report that both students are 
doing very well and no issues or areas of concern were noted. 
Each classroom exhibited students on task, engaged in academic 
lessons, and working with staff and peers.

Spectrum - Delta 11/17/22
12/7/22

No
Yes

2
3

0
0

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

I was there to tour a family so I was able to do my visit after the 
scheduled tour. Both students are doing well and making 
progress. One of our students that struggles to transition was 
observed transitioning from the van in the morning, to drop off his 
backpack in the classroom, to the playground for his morning 
activity, and back to class to work, without any issues. 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
I was able to observe all three students attending Spectrum 
Delta. I was able to speak at length with the teacher of the 
student who began yesterday. Despite some behaviors, staff 
seem optimistic about working with the student and getting him 
adjusted to the school site. Staff reported another student is 
doing well at school, but has had an increase in behaviors at 
home and that they had an IEP scheduled for this week with the 
family to address concerns. The 3rd student was observed on the 
playground during a break and staff reports she is doing well and 
making progress.

Spectrum Solano 12/8/22 Yes 32 Yes (No 
APE)

Yes Observed 4 classrooms. Student on task. Credentials reviewed. 
Walked through the multi-purpose area while students present. 
No concerns from this visit.

Spectrum Tara Hills 11/14/22 Yes 1 1 Yes Yes Observed student in the classroom setting.  He was working on 
making a picture exchange to ask for a break.  Staff report he has 
adjusted well and is making progress. 

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #5.3



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.1. 2022-2023 Fee-for-Service Schedule 

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the Council of Superintendents approve the 2022-

2023 Fee-for-Service Schedule as submitted. 

 

Introduction: 
 

• The district-to-district Fee-for-Service Schedule has been 
updated to reflect the average prior year's actual salaries 
and benefits, as provided by Solano County SELPA 
member districts.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
See attached document. 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



Fee for Service SCIL TAP FA PERL AdPE* Vision* O&M* Speech* OT* Behavior*

Salary & Benefits - Teacher 104,792$    99,714$     109,628$    100,007$   125,071$   115,584$   96,392$     132,910$   137,124$   108,291$   
Salary & Benefits - Instructional Aide 51,883$      58,345$     49,760$      63,293$     
Salary & Benefits - Instructional Aide 51,883$      58,345$     49,760$      63,293$     
Salary & Benefits - Psych/MHC 40% 53,530$     
Salary & Benefits - Behaviorist 20% 21,658$      20% 21,658$     

230,216$    238,061$   209,148$    280,123$   125,071$   115,584$   96,392$     132,910$   137,124$   108,291$   

PLUS Direct Costs - 5% 11,511$      11,903$     10,457$      14,006$     6,254$       5,779$       4,820$       6,645$       6,856$       5,415$       
Direct Costs cover…
Clerical, Principal, SE Director,
Prog. Spec., travel, mileage, supplies,
materials, equipment, start-up, events,
staff training and all other direct costs.

Subtotal 241,727$    249,964$   219,605$    294,130$   131,325$   121,363$   101,211$   139,555$   143,980$   113,705$   

PLUS Indirect Costs - 5% 11,511$      11,903$     10,457$      14,006$     6,254$       5,779$       4,820$       6,645$       6,856$       5,415$       
Total 253,238$    261,867$   230,063$    308,136$   137,578$   127,142$   106,031$   146,201$   150,836$   119,120$   

Divided by Billing Factor 6 7 7 10 33 12 20 45 25 25
Gross COST per Student 42,207$      37,411$     32,867$      30,814$     4,170$       10,596$     5,303$       3,249$       6,032$       4,764$       

LESS LCFF Transfer Factor -$              (7,309)$      (7,309)$       (7,309)$      -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
COST per Student

   Charged to District for Full Year 42,207$      30,102$     25,558$      23,505$     4,170$       10,596$     5,303$       3,249$       6,032$       4,764$       

Fee for Service SCIL TAP FA PERL AdPE* Vision* O&M* Speech* OT* Behavior*
COST per Student

   Daily Rate (based on 180 days) 234.48$      167.23$     141.99$      130.58$     23.17$       58.87$       29.46$       18.05$       33.51$       26.47$       

 Pay up to 50% of full year cost at Mid-Year 21,104$      15,051$     12,779$      11,752$     2,085$       5,298$       2,651$       1,624$       3,016$       2,382$       
 Pay up to 50% of full year cost at Year-End 21,104$      15,051$     12,779$      11,752$     2,085$       5,298$       2,651$       1,624$       3,016$       2,382$       

42,207$      30,102$     25,558$      23,505$     4,170$       10,596$     5,303$       3,249$       6,032$       4,764$       

Acronyms
SCIL…………………………………Preschool Structured Class for Intensive Learning
TAP…………………………………Elementary Transitional Academic Program
FA…............................................ Functional Academics
PERL…………………………………Program for Emotional Regulation & Learning
AdPE…………………………………Adaptive Physical Education
O&M…………………………………Orientation & Mobility
OT……………………………………Occupational Therapy

NOTE: Fee for Service bills are prorated based on days of enrollment, and are billed on enrollment to date at Mid-Year (Dec) with the balance at Year-End (June).

District to District Fee for Service Schedule - FY 2022-2023
Starting July 1, 2022

Solano County SELPA

* Responsible LEA will charge 50% of the approved rate for consultation services @ 10 hrs/yr or less.

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.1



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.2. 2023-2024 Budget Development Calendar 

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the Council of Superintendents approve the 2023-

2024 Budget Development Calendar as submitted. 

 

Introduction: 
 

• Consistent with the current budget development 
timeline, the 2023-2024 Budget Development 
Calendar is presented for your approval.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
See attached document. 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



Solano County SELPA Budget Adoption Process: 
FY 2023-2024 Budget Development Calendar 

January 18 Governance & Finance Committee (GFC): Budget Development  
Calendar Discussion 

19 Council of Superintendents (COS): Budget Development Calendar  
Approval 

February 15 GFC: Develop/Approve Budget Assumptions 
16 COS: Budget Assumptions for Approval 

March 23 Joint COS/ GFC:  SCOE Special Education  
Operation Proposed FY 23-24 Budget Review 

23 Joint COS/GFC:  SELPA FY 23-24 Proposed 
Budget Review 

23 COS: Public Hearing/Possible Budget Adoption 

April 19 GFC: Continue Budget Review (if needed) 
27 COS: Public Hearing/Budget Adoption Item (if needed) 

May  17 GFC: Continue Budget Review (if needed) 
25 COS: Public Hearing/Budget Adoption Item (if needed) 

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.2



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 

Subject: SELPA Business 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  6.3. Vacaville USD Extensive Support Needs Transfer Consideration 

Type: Information 

Introduction: 

• Solano County SELPA and Vacaville USD will update the
COS on the potential program transfer of the Extensive
Support Needs program.

Notes: 

See attached document.



January 12, 2023

Solano County SELPA Council of Superintendents
5100 Business Center Drive
Fairfield, CA 94534

Re: K-12 Moderate/Severe Program Transfer

Council of Superintendents:

In accordance with California Education Code §56207 and the Solano County SELPA
Local Plan, on June 28, 2022, the Vacaville Unified School District provided formal
notice of intent to transfer the following programs from Solano County Office of
Education operated Moderate/Severe classrooms to Vacaville Unified School District
operated Moderate/Severe classrooms:

● Elementary Classrooms
○ Alamo Elementary I
○ Alamo Elementary II
○ Browns Valley Elementary I
○ Browns Valley Elementary  II
○ Sierra Vista K-8

● Middle School Classrooms
○ Willis Jepson Middle School
○ Vaca Pena Middle School

● High School Classrooms
○ Vacaville High School
○ Will C. Wood High School

Following our work with the Solano County SELPA and the Solano County Office of
Education to ensure compliance with Ed.Code §56207 and in addressing the fiscal

1

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.3



impacts to both the VUSD and our member districts, we are providing notice of our
intent to terminate this transfer request for the 2023-2024 school year.
VUSD is still very much interested in reviewing the possibility of transferring these
programs, and we will continue to engage in the study of the feasibility, compliance, and
fiscal impacts of a transfer. Please consider this letter our official notice of an intent to
transfer the aforementioned programs for the 2024-2025 school year.

Should the results of further study determine that VUSD cannot support the program
transfer and/or fully comply with Ed.Code §56207, notice to terminate this potential
transfer will be provided to the Council of Superintendents and the Solano County Office
of Education by January 31, 2024.

While the District has not made a final determination, we are issuing this notice of
transfer to preserve our option of providing services to our, and possibly other interested
LEAs, students currently enrolled in SCOE moderate/severe programs beginning
August of 2024. VUSD looks forward to collaborating with our other SELPA District
partners in preparation for this possible change.

Thank you for being our educational partners!

Jane Shamieh
Superintendent

References:
Education Code 44903.7
Education Code 56207

2

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.3



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.4. Solano COE Transportation Transfer Consideration 

 

Type: Information 

 

Introduction: 
 

• Solano County SELPA and Solano COE will update the COS 
on the potential program transfer of transportation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
See attached Seven-
Point Plan. 

 



Seven-Point Plan:
SCOE Transportation Program Transfer

The Solano County Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) received a proposed program
transfer from the Solano County Office of Education (SCOE).  The proposal would cease
SCOEs transportation of pupils from the member school districts, transferring that responsibility
back to the school district responsible for providing a FAPE to the impacted student..

Education Code § 56207(a) requires the SELPA to develop a plan to address program transfers
that contains specific contents..

Plan for the transfer of SCOE transportation to the district of special education
accountability.

(1) Pupil needs.
The needs of impacted pupils are addressed in each student’s IEP. The determination of
whether a student requires transportation as a related service will continue to be an IEP team
decision. Districts will need to ensure training for bus drivers and other staff responsible for
transportation regarding special needs of students.  Longer travel times are commonly
associated with nonpublic school placements and other out-of-district placements. Districts have
the discretion to select the method for the student's transportation, provided it is appropriate. If
there are significant changes to the length of bus ride or pick up/drop off times or locations as a
result of the change in service provider, such changes may be discussed as an IEP team.

(2) The availability of the full continuum of services to affected pupils.
The proposed program transfer has no direct impact on the continuum of services available to
students as the transfer will merely change the education agency  providing the service of
transportation.A continuum of alternative placements will continue to be available to meet the
needs of children with disabilities for special education and related services.

(3) The functional continuation of the current individualized education programs (IEP) of all
affected pupils.
The proposed program transfer has no direct impact on the continuation of pupil’s current IEPs
as the transfer will merely change the education agency  providing the service of transportation.

(4) The provision of services in the least restrictive environment (LRE) from which affected
pupils can benefit.
The proposed program transfer has no direct impact on the provision of services in the LRE as
the transfer will merely change the education agency  providing the service of transportation. It
is assumed that most children with disabilities will receive the same transportation provided to
nondisabled children, consistent with LRE requirements, unless the IEP determines otherwise.
The IEP team’s determination to provide transportation as a related service is not contingent
upon SCOE providing the transportation service

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.4

Page 1 of 2



(5) The maintenance of all appropriate support services.
The proposed program transfer has no direct impact on the maintenance of appropriate
supports as the transfer will merely change the education agency  providing the service of
transportation.  There is a nation-wide shortage of bus drivers and LEAs are struggling to
provide transportation for students.  This will remain true regardless of the program operator.
SELPA members will need to work cooperatively taking into consideration the recent special
education transportation study recommendations that was conducted multiple times over
several years to ensure maintenance of all appropriate transportation services in the most
cost-effective manner which may or may not include the formation of a Joint Powers Authority
(JPA) or mutual agreements between any LEAs.

(6) The assurance that there will be compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations
and special education local plan area policies.
The SELPA and its member LEAs assure that they will comply with all federal and state laws
and regulations and the SELPA Local Plan policies.

(7) The means through which parents and staff were represented in the planning process.

On September 6, 2022, Solano County SELPA sent written notification to parents of students
transported by SCOE indicating that a change may occur in the 2023-24 school year of the
possibility of transferring the responsibility for transporting students back to the students’ district
of residence. Parents were alerted to the opportunity to be involved and provide input into the
planning process by (1) submitting written comments to the SELPA for consideration via email
or (2) attending any of four Community Advisory Committee (CAC) meetings to be held at the
Solano County Office of Education. In addition, SCOE has scheduled a series of informational
meetings with transportation staff to review the program transfer process and applicable rights
whenever a transportation employee is terminated, reassigned, transferred, or becomes the
employee of another employer because of a reorganization of special education programs.
SCOE has held listening sessions, responded to feedback, and has addressed questions and
concerns.

COS 1/19/2023 
Item #6.4

Page 2 of 2



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.5. Regional Transportation 

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the COS direct the SELPA to cease exploration of 

forming a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) for regional transportation. 

 

Introduction: 
 

• At the November 17, 2022, COS meeting, the COS 
determined that a decision regarding the next steps on 
regional transportation would be made at the January 19, 
2023, meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.6. Direction on Solano SELPA Funding of Regional Programs  

 

Type: Action 

 

Recommended Action:  It is requested that the COS give direction on conducting a study of the 

funding of Solano COE-operated regional programs. 

 

Introduction: 
 

• At the December 14, 2022, COS meeting, the COS 
requested that a third party be contracted to conduct a 
study of the funding of regional programs operated by 
SCOE. Members were encouraged to bring suggestions for 
consultants at the January 19, 2023, meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Board Discussion 

Motion 

Second 

Vote 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

 

Subject: SELPA Business 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  6.7. Updated SELPA Salary Schedules 

 

Type: Information 

 

Introduction: 
 

• As requested by the COS, annually, the SELPA will present 
an updated salary schedule reflecting the approved 
adjustments made by the SELPA's administrative unit, 
Solano County Office of Education.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 
 

 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

Subject: Advance Planning 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item: 7.0. Advance Planning  

 

Type: Information 

 

Introduction: 
 

• February 16, 2023 Council of Superintendents’ meeting: 
o Review and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 SELPA Budget Assumptions 
o Review and Approval of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 SCOE Special Education Budget 

Assumptions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Council of Superintendents 

Solano County SELPA 
 

 

Subject: Closed Session 

 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2023 

 

Agenda Item:  8.0. Closed Session 

 

Type: Action 

 

Introduction: 
 

8.1. Public Comment: Any member of the public may address 
the Board regarding items on the closed session agenda. 
Each speaker is allowed three (3) minutes. 

 
8.2. Adjourn to Closed Session: Pursuant to Government Code 

section 54957 (b)(1), the COS will adjourn to closed 
session for a mid-year check-in, as part of the SELPA 
Assistant Superintendent’s evaluation of performance. 

 
8.3. Closed Session: Evaluation of Performance (Government 

Code section 54957 (b)(1)). Mid-year check-in – Assistant 
Superintendent, SELPA.  

 
8.4. Reconvene in open session. 

 
9.0. Report of Closed Session Actions 

 
 
 

Notes: 

Protocol: 

Public Comment 

Adjourn to Closed Session 

Closed Session 

Reconvene in Open Session 

Report of Closed Session Actions 


	3.2 Jan 23.pdf
	January 19, 2023

	3.3. SELPA financial statements January.pdf
	fiscal 16a revenue by resource summary
	fiscal 02a revenue by resource detail
	fiscal 16a expense by resource summary
	fiscal 02a expense by resource detail
	fiscal 16a revenue by object summary
	fiscal 02a revenue by object detail
	fiscal 16a expense by object summary
	fiscal 02a expense by object detail


	Button1: 


